DATE:
TIME:

PLACE:

PAGE:

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

October 8, 2025
9:00 a.m.
Polk County Courthouse, Dallas, Oregon

THE LOCATION OF THIS MEETING IS ADA ACCESSIBLE. PLEASE ADVISE THE BOARD OF

COMMISSIONERS AT (503-623-8173), AT LEAST 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE, OF ANY SPECIAL
ACCOMMODATIONS NEEDED TO ATTEND OR TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIRTUALLY.

AGENDA ITEMS

1. CALL TO ORDER AND NOTE OF ATTENDANCE
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS
(@ Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. Each meeting

is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and
is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principal subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant
to ORS 192.640, the Board may consider and take action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda. The Board
also holds a department staff meeting at 9:00am on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850
Main Street, Dallas, Oregon.

3. COMMENTS (for items not on this agenda and limited to 3 minutes. We encourage all community
members to engage with public comments to the Board of Commissioners. However, out of
respect for our audience and a general sense of decorum please refrain from vulgar,
threatening or inappropriate language.)

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM October 1, 2025
APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR

LENGTH OF SERVICE AWARDS - Matt Hawkins

N oo o &

e Dawn Feldman, 20 years of service
e Billy German, 10 years of service
e Olivia Maruame, 10 years of service
e Michael Smith, 10 years of service
8. RECLASSIFICATION OF AN EMPLOYEE - Matt Hawkins

CONSENT CALENDAR

a) Polk County Contract No. 25-175, Oregon Health Authority
(Rosana Warren Rivera, Public Health)

THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WILL MEET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION
PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660.

ADJOURNMENT

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Page 1 of 2



POLK COUNTY PUBLIC MEETINGS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS
GUIDELINE FOR CITIZENS

kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkk

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

Regular meetings of the Polk County Board of Commissioners convene at 9 a.m. each Wednesday morning. Any
person wishing to bring a matter before the Board at one of these meetings may do so by mailing or delivering
written notice, concisely describing the nature of the item, to the Board of Commissioners, Polk County Courthouse,
Dallas, Oregon 97338, by noon on the preceding Thursday. Unless otherwise announced, meetings are held in the
Main Conference Room of the Courthouse.

kkkkkkkkkkkkkhkkkkkkkkhkkkkkk

APPEARANCE OF INTERESTED CITIZENS

The Board sets aside a time at each regular meeting for comment by the public on subjects not appearing on the
Agenda. Individuals may come forward and make any statement they wish, but not to exceed three (3) minutes in
length, except as is required to give concise answers to questions from Board members. If the subject will require
a lengthier presentation, or merits inclusion as an item on the Agenda of a future meeting, the Board shall schedule
it accordingly.

kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkk

PUBLIC HEARING FORMAT

Land Use

1. Chairman opens hearing.
a. Reading of hearing request or appeal statement.
b. Call for abstentions (ex parte contact or conflict of interest).

2. County staff presents background, summary and its recommendation (20-minute limit).
3. Applicant (Appellant) presents his/her case (15-minute limit).
4, Public testimony. Note that all testimony and evidence must be directed toward the applicable factual and

legal criteria as identified in the record and/or during this hearing. Do not repeat previous testimony. Simply

note for the record that you are in agreement with that earlier testimony. Your time to present testimony is

limited. FAILURE TO RAISE AN ISSUE IN THIS HEARING, IN PERSON OR BY LETTER, OR FAILURE

TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE SPECIFICITY TO AFFORD THE BOARD AN OPPORTUNITY TO RESPOND

TO THE ISSUE MAY PRECLUDE LATER APPEAL TO LUBA ON THAT ISSUE.

a. Individuals in favor of the application or appeal.

b. Individuals against the application or appeal. At the discretion of the Chairman, an attorney,
consultant, or other designated representative of two or more individuals may be allowed the
combined time for each represented individual who does not speak, not to exceed 20 minutes. The
Chairman may require proof of designation.

5. Rebuttal by Applicant (Appellant) (10-minute limit).
6. Questions from Board (discussion limited to individuals questioned by the Board).
a. Staff.

b. Applicant (Appellant).

c. Individuals testifying.

Chairman closes hearing and announces closing of Record.

Chairman announces date for deliberation and decision.

The Board's decision is deemed the final decision of Polk County. It may be appealed to LUBA within 21
days of its issuance in written form. The address and phone number of LUBA may be obtained from the Polk
County Community Development Department and will also appear on the Notice of Decision which will be
mailed to all persons who testify, submit comments, or print their name and address on the hearing
attendance sheet at the back of the hearing room.

© o~

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Page 2 of 2



POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
MINUTES October 1, 2025

1. CALL TO ORDER & ATTENDANCE
At 9:00 a.m., Commissioner Pope declared the meeting of the Polk County Board of Commissioners
to be in session. Commissioner Mordhorst and Commissioner Gordon were present.

Staff present:

Morgan Smith, County Counsel

Matt Hawkins, Administrative Services Director
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS

Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week.
Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principle
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, The Board may consider and take
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda. The Board also holds a department staff meeting
at 9:00 a.m. on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas,
Oregon.

The Polk County Board of Commissioners will be attending a special meeting for Polk County Local
Public Safety Coordinating Council meeting on October 7, 2025 at 12:00 p.m., and is a virtual only
meeting.

3. COMMENTS
Nate Chrowl provided public comment in regards to the changes being made in the VSO. He
wanted to share his opinion that he strongly disagrees with the budget changes and
reorganization that is happening in that office. Mr. Chrowl shared praise of the work that has
been done by two veteran service officers and why he disagrees with their layoffs.
Commissioner Pope replied that there was more to the story and Commissioner Gordon stated
he would be more than happy to talk with him after this meeting.

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

MOTION: COMMISSIONER GORDON MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE AGENDA.

ALL VOTED YES.
MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD.

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF September 25, 2025

MOTION: COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER GORDON
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF September 25, 2025.

ALL VOTED YES.
MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD.

6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR

MOTION: COMMISSIONER GORDON MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR.

ALL VOTED YES.
MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD.



October 1, 2025
Page 2

The following items were approved by Motion under 5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR:

a) Polk County Contract No. 25-172, Oregon Health
Authority
(Rosana Warren Rivera, Behavioral Health)

b) Polk County LADPC Member Appointment, Christine
Felt
(Jodi Merritt, Community Corrections Director

c) Polk County Contract No. 25-173, Health Net Health
Plan of Oregon, Inc
(Rosana Warren Rivera, Public Health)

d) Declaring Surplus Property
(Todd Whitaker, Public Works Director)

Commissioner Gordon updated the Board about some broadband awards and stated
when he has more information, he will provide that to them.

There no need for an executive session and Commissioner Pope adjourned the meeting
at 9:09 a.m.

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Craig Pope, Chair

Jeremy Gordon, Commissioner

Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner

Minutes: Nicole Pineda
Approved: October 8, 2025



HUMAN RESOURCES

POLK COUNTY

POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE * DALLAS, OREGON 97338-3174
(503) 623-1888 *Fax (503) 623-1889

MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of Commissioners
FROM. Matt Hawkins, Admin. Services Director
DATE: October 1, 2025

SUBJECT: Reclassification of a Community Resource Connector II
Wednesday — October 8, 2025 (5 minutes)

RECOMMENDATION:
The Board of Commissioners approve the reclassification of a Community Resource Connector IL.

ISSUE:
Shall the Board approve the reclassifications?

DISCUSSION:

It is recommended that Jesus Maciel Abarca, with the Family and Community Outreach department be
reclassified from a Community Resource Connector II to a Lead Community Resource Connector.
Jesus has been working out of class in the Lead Community Resource Connector position since April
of 2025 and has performed well in this position. This reclassification will officially acknowledge the
work he has been doing these last several months.

Jesus is currently at step 4 of the Community Resource Connector II position which is (009) $4,170. If the
reclassification is approved, he would move to step 4 of the Lead Community Resource Connector
position which is (013) $4,337.

Should the reclassification be approved, it would be effective October 1, 2025.

FISCAL IMPACT:
This reclassification will have an impact on the budget for FY 25-26 of approximately $2,700
including PERS contribution should it be for 12 months.




e~ CONTRACT REVIEW SHEET
POLK COUNTY

Staff Contact: Rosana Warren Rivera Phone Number (Ext): 2550

Department:  Health Services: Public Health Consent Calendar Date: October 01, 2025

Contractor Name: Oregon Health Authority

Address: 635 Capitol Street NE, Room 350

City, State, Zip: Salem, OR 97301

Effective Dates - From: August 01,2025 Through: June 30, 2026

Contract Amount: $(22,707.00)

Background:

The County receives funds from the Oregon Health Authority to provide Public Health Services to residents
of the County by way of a grant. This is Amendment 2 to IGA 185827 (No. 25-109) the initial award from the
State. The grant award may be modified from time-to-time throughout the fiscal year to reflect changes to
funds and/or programs that are made as part of the grant.

Discussion:

This Amendment 2 decreases the original award to the Public Health PE12 PHEP in the amount of $22,707
due to a decrease in CDC funding who only awarded 70% of expected amounts. This Amendment also
updates language in PEO3 TB lessening performance measures as expected.

Fiscal Impact:

The total award for this Amendment is a net decrease of $22,707 in funding for PE12. OHA reports that they
expect the CDC to provide the remaining funding in the fall at the end of Federal Fiscal Year through a future
Amendment. The PH Budget was prepared in anticipation of this funding being in place and may require a
budget resolution to maintain services status quo.

Recommendation:

It is recommended that Polk County sign Amendment 2 to IGA 185827 with the Oregon Health Authority.

Copies of signed contract should be sent to the following:
Name: Rosana Warren Rivera E-mail: hs.contracts@co.polk.or.us

Name; E-mail;




Polk County Contract No. 25-175 (Amendment 2 to 25-109)
OHA - 2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, this document is available in alternate formats such as
Braille, large print, audio recordings, Web-based communications and other electronic formats. To request an
alternate format, please send an e-mail to dhs-oha.publicationrequest@state.or.us or call 503-378-3486 (voice)
or 503-378-3523 (TTY) to arrange for the alternative format.

Agreement #185827

AMENDMENT TO OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY
2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE
FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

This Second Amendment to Oregon Health Authority 2025-2027 Intergovernmental Agreement for the
Financing of Public Health Services, effective July 1, 2025, (as amended the “Agreement”), is between the State
of Oregon acting by and through its Oregon Health Authority (“OHA”) and Polk County, (“LPHA”), the entity
designated, pursuant to ORS 431.003, as the Local Public Health Authority for Polk County. OHA and LPHA
are each a “Party” and together the “Parties” to the Agreement.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, OHA and LPHA wish to modify the set of Program Element Description(s) set forth in
Exhibit B of the Agreement

WHEREAS, OHA and LPHA wish to modify the Financial Assistance Award set forth in Exhibit C of
the Agreement.

WHEREAS, OHA and LPHA wish to modify information required by 2 CFR Subtitle B with guidance
at 2 CFR Part 200 as set forth in Exhibit J of the Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, covenants and agreements contained herein and
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties
hereto agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1. This Amendment is effective on August 1, 2025, regardless of the date this amendment has been fully
executed with signatures by every Party and when required, approved by the Department of Justice.
However, payments may not be disbursed until the Amendment is fully executed.

2. The Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

a. Exhibit B Program Element #03 “Tuberculosis Services” is hereby superseded and replaced by
Attachment A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.

b. Exhibit C, Section 1 of the Agreement, entitled “Financial Assistance Award” is hereby
superseded and replaced in its entirety by Attachment B, entitled “Financial Assistance Award”,
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. Attachment B must be read in
conjunction with Section 2 of Exhibit C.

c. Exhibit J of the Agreement entitled “Information required by 2 CFR Subtitle B with guidance at
2 CFR Part 200” is amended to add to the federal award information datasheet as set forth in
Attachment C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.

3. LPHA represents and warrants to OHA that the representations and warranties of LPHA set forth in
Section 4 of Exhibit F of the Agreement are true and correct on the date hereof with the same effect as if
made on the date hereof.

4. Capitalized words and phrases used but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in
the Agreement.

5. Except as amended hereby, all terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and effect.

185827 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 1 OF 11 PAGES



OHA -2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

6. This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which when taken together
shall constitute one agreement binding on all parties, notwithstanding that all parties are not signatories
to the same counterpart. Each copy of this Amendment so executed shall constitute an original.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the dates set forth
below their respective signatures.

7. Signatures.

STATE OF OREGON, ACTING BY AND THROUGH ITS OREGON HEALTH AUTHORITY

Approved by:

Name: /for/ Nadia A. Davidson
Title: Director of Finance
Date:

PoOLK COUNTY LOCAL PUBLIC HEALTH AUTHORITY

Approved by:

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE — APPROVED FOR LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

Agreement form group-approved by Devon Thorson, Senior Assistant Attorney General, Tax and
Finance Section, General Counsel Division, Oregon Department of Justice by email on August 11, 2025,
copy of email approval in Agreement file.

REVIEWED BY OHA PUBLIC HEALTH ADMINISTRATION

Reviewed by:

Name: Rolonda Widenmeyer (or designee)
Title: Program Support Manager

Date:

185827 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 2 OF 11 PAGES



OHA -2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

Attachment A
Exhibit B - Program Element Description(s)

Program Element #03: Tuberculosis Services

OHA Program Responsible for Program Element:
Public Health Division/Center for Public Health Practice/HIV, STD and TB Section

1.

Description.

Funds provided under this Agreement for this Program Element may only be used in accordance with,
and subject to, the requirements and limitations set forth below, to deliver Tuberculosis Services.

ORS 433.006 and OAR 333-019-0000 assign responsibility to LPHA for Tuberculosis (“TB”)
investigations and implementation of TB control measures within LPHA’s service area. The funds
provided for TB Case Management Services (including contact investigation) and B-waiver Follow-Up
under the Agreement for this Program Element may only be used as supplemental funds to support
LPHA’s TB investigation and control efforts and are not intended to be the sole funding for LPHA’s TB
investigation and control program.

Pulmonary tuberculosis is an infectious disease that is airborne. Treatment for TB disease must be
provided by Directly Observed Therapy to ensure the patient is cured and prevent drug resistant TB.
Screening and treating Contacts stops disease transmission. Tuberculosis prevention and control is a
priority in order to protect the population from communicable disease and is included in the State Health
Improvement Plan (SHIP).

This Program Element, and all changes to this Program Element are effective the first day of the month
noted in the Issue Date section of Exhibit C Financial Assistance Award unless otherwise noted in
Comments and Footnotes of Exhibit C of the Financial Assistance Award.

Definitions Specific to TB Services

a. Active TB Disease: TB disease in an individual whose immune system has failed to control his
or her TB infection and who has become ill with Active TB Disease, as determined in
accordance with the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention’s (CDC) laboratory or clinical
criteria for Active TB Disease and based on a diagnostic evaluation of the individual.

b. Appropriate Therapy: Current TB treatment regimens recommended by the CDC, the
American Thoracic Society, the Academy of Pediatrics, and the Infectious Diseases Society of
America.

c. Associated Cases: Additional Cases of TB disease discovered while performing a Contact
investigation.

d. B-waiver Immigrants: Immigrants or refugees screened for TB prior to entry to the U.S. and

found to have TB disease Latent TB Infection, or an abnormal chest x-ray finding suggestive of
TB with negative sputum smears and culture results.

e. B-waiver Follow-Up: B-waiver Follow-Up includes initial attempts by the LPHA to locate the
B- waiver immigrant. If located, LPHA proceeds to coordinate or provide TB medical evaluation
and treatment as needed. Updates on status are submitted regularly by LPHA using Electronic
Disease Network (EDN) or the follow-up worksheet.

f. Case: A Case is an individual, whose illness is confirmed to be Active TB Disease or, whose
illness meets defining criteria published in OHA’s Tuberculosis Investigative Guidelines. This
diagnosis may be based on signs, symptoms, and/or laboratory findings.

185827 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 3 OF 11 PAGES



OHA -2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

g.

Cohort Review: A systematic review of the management of patients with TB disease and their
Contacts. The “cohort” is a group of TB Cases counted (confirmed as Cases) over 3 months. The
Cases are reviewed 6-9 months after being counted to ensure they have completed treatment or
are nearing the end. Details of the management and outcomes of TB Cases are reviewed in a
group with the information presented by the case manager.

Contact: An individual who was significantly exposed to an infectious Case of Active TB
Disease.

Directly Observed Therapy (DOT): LPHA staff (or other person appropriately designated by
the LPHA) observes an individual with TB disease swallowing each dose of TB medication to
assure adequate treatment and prevent the development of drug resistant TB. May be completed
in person or by video (VDOT, eDOT) or other technology deemed appropriate by OHA.

Evaluated (in context of Contact investigation): A Contact received a complete TB symptom
review and tests as described in the definition of Medical Evaluation, below, or in the OHA
Tuberculosis Investigative Guidelines.

Interjurisdictional Transfer: A Suspected Case, TB Case or Contact transferred for follow-up
evaluation and care from another jurisdiction either within or outside of Oregon.

Investigative Guidelines: OHA guidelines, which are incorporated herein by this reference are
available for review at:
http://public.health.oregon.gov/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease/Tuberculosis/Docum
ents/investigativeguide.pdf.

Latent TB Infection (LTBI): TB infection in a person whose immune system is keeping the TB
infection under control. LTBI is also referred to as TB in a dormant stage.

Medical Evaluation: A complete medical examination of an individual for TB including a
medical history, physical examination, TB skin test or interferon gamma release assay, chest x-
ray, and any appropriate molecular, bacteriologic, histologic examinations.

Suspected Case of Active TB Disease: A Suspected Case of Active TB Disease, is an individual
whose illness is thought by a health care provider, to be Active TB Disease or whose illness
meets defining criteria published in OHA’s Tuberculosis Investigative Guidelines. This
suspicion may be based on signs, symptoms, or laboratory findings.

TB Case Management Services: Dynamic and systematic management of a Case of Active TB
Disease where a person, known as a TB Case manager, is assigned responsibility for the
management of an individual TB Case to ensure completion of treatment. TB Case Management
Services requires a collaborative approach to providing and coordinating health care services for
the individual. The Case manager is responsible for ensuring adequate TB treatment,
coordinating care as needed, providing patient education and counseling, performing Contact
investigations and following infected Contacts through completion of treatment, identifying
barriers to care and implementing strategies to remove those barriers.

3. Alignment with Modernization Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities.

The activities and services that the LPHA has agreed to deliver under this Program Element align with
Foundational Programs and Foundational Capabilities and the public health accountability metrics (if
applicable), as follows (see Public Health Modernization Manual at
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_man

ual.pdf:

185827 TLH

AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 4 OF 11 PAGES


http://public.health.oregon.gov/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease/Tuberculosis/Documents/investigativeguide.pdf
http://public.health.oregon.gov/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease/Tuberculosis/Documents/investigativeguide.pdf
http://public.health.oregon.gov/DiseasesConditions/CommunicableDisease/Tuberculosis/Documents/investigativeguide.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_man
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/ABOUT/TASKFORCE/Documents/public_health_modernization_manual.pdf

OHA -2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

a. Foundational Programs and Capabilities (As specified in Public Health Modernization
Manual)
Program Components Foundational Program JFoundational Capabilities
[72])
—_ O
g 52 |- .
E £5 |t g E
g IS 2 — = ©
S g 2 3 s = 2
g, =g N E = = g
= S |48 g = z = 3
S g |85 20 > 9 S e =
2 2 /< & S E £ - |€ |2l
g S 2 |8 » > @ A= s s 2L
S |z o 2 1.a5 55 |£2 s ~ e D
E |9 € |g |zl |2 g g o E12 o
= |2 s |2 |32 & © -z = 5 & SBEIRE:
S| g S |'E 2 50 |g & g 2 A > | E| @3
O | R S o= |- & = ° ) &4 15 5 &
o5 |z |252|EE |55 Bz |2 |5 |E|2
O |~ 4 |£25=°8 & |[oQ |[< |& |Odw
Asterisk (*) = Primary foundational program that X = Foundational capabilities that align with
aligns with each component each component
X = Other applicable foundational programs
TB Case Management
Services * X X X
TB Contact Investigation
and Evaluation * X X
Participation in TB
Cohort Review * X
Evaluation of B-waiver
Immigrants * X X
b. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health system
achieve the following Public Health Accountability Metrics, Health Outcome Indicators:
Not applicable
c. The work in this Program Element helps Oregon’s governmental public health system
achieve the following Public Health Accountability Metrics, LPHA Process Measure:
Not applicable
4. Procedural and Operational Requirements.

By accepting fee-for-service (FFS) funds to provide TB Case Management Services or B-waiver
Follow-Up, LPHA agrees to conduct activities in accordance with the following requirements:

a. LPHA must include the following minimum TB services in its TB investigation and control
program if that program is supported in whole or in part with funds provided under this
Agreement: TB Case Management Services, as defined above and further described below and in
OHA'’s Investigative Guidelines.

b. LPHA will receive $3500 for each new case of Active TB disease counted in Oregon and
documented in Orpheus for which the LPHA provides TB Case Management Services. LPHA
will receive $300 for each new B-waiver Follow-Up.

185827 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 5 OF 11 PAGES



OHA -2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

C.

185827 TLH

TB Case Management Services. LPHA’s TB Case Management Services must include the
following minimum components:

1)

(2)

3

C)

)

(6)

)

®)

LPHA must investigate and monitor treatment for each Case and Suspected Case of
Active TB Disease identified by or reported to LPHA whose residence is in LPHA’s
jurisdiction, to confirm the diagnosis of TB and ensure completion of adequate therapy.

LPHA must require individuals who reside in LPHA’s jurisdiction and who LPHA
suspects of having Active TB Disease, to receive appropriate Medical Evaluations and
laboratory testing to confirm the diagnosis of TB and response to therapy, through the
completion of treatment. LPHA must assist in arranging the laboratory testing and
Medical Evaluation, as necessary.

LPHA must provide medication for the treatment of TB disease to all individuals who
reside in LPHA’s jurisdiction and who have TB disease but who do not have the means
to purchase TB medications or for whom obtaining or using identified means is a barrier
to TB treatment compliance. LPHA must monitor, at least monthly and in person,
individuals receiving medication(s) for adherence to treatment guidelines, medication
side effects, and clinical response to treatment.

DOT (including VDOT or eDOT) is the standard of care for the treatment of TB
disease. Cases of TB disease should be treated via DOT. If DOT is not utilized, OHA’s
TB Program must be consulted.

OHA’s TB Program must be consulted prior to initiation of any TB treatment regimen
which is not recommended by the most current CDC, American Thoracic Society and
Infectious Diseases Society of America TB treatment guideline.

LPHA may assist the patient in completion of treatment for TB disease by utilizing the
below methods. Methods to ensure adherence should be documented.

(a) Proposed interventions for assisting the individual to overcome obstacles to
treatment adherence (e.g. assistance with transportation).

(b) Proposed use of incentives and enablers to encourage the individual’s
compliance with the treatment plan.

With respect to each Case of TB disease within LPHAs jurisdiction that is identified by
or reported to LPHA, LPHA must perform a Contact investigation to identify Contacts,
Associated Cases and source of infection. The LPHA must evaluate all located Contacts
or confirm that all located Contacts were advised of their risk for TB infection and
disease.

LPHA must offer or advise each located Contact identified with TB infection or disease,
or confirm that all located Contacts were offered or advised, to take Appropriate
Therapy and must monitor each Contact who starts treatment through the completion of
treatment (or discontinuation of treatment).

If LPHA receives in-kind resources under this Agreement in the form of medications for treating
TB, LPHA must use those medications to treat individuals for TB. In the event of a non-TB
related emergency (i.e. meningococcal contacts), with notification to TB Program, the LPHA
may use these medications to address the emergent situation.

LPHA must present TB Cases through participation in the quarterly Cohort Review. If the LPHA
is unable to present the Case at the designated time, other arrangements must be made in
collaboration with OHA.

AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 6 OF 11 PAGES



OHA -2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

f. LPHA must accept B-waiver Immigrants and Interjurisdictional Transfers for Medical
Evaluation and follow-up, as appropriate for LPHA capabilities.

g. If LPHA contracts with another person to provide the services required under this Program
Element, the in-kind resources in the form of medications received by LPHA from OHA must be
provided, free of charge, to the contractor for the purposes set out in this Program Element and
the contractor must comply with all requirements related to such medications unless OHA
informs LPHA in writing that the medications cannot be provided to the contractor. The LPHA
must document the medications provided to a contractor under this Program Element.

h. OHA, through CDC Tuberculosis Elimination and Laboratory Cooperative Agreement, will
provide in-kind services to LPHAs through technical assistance, clinical consultation, and
laboratory related to TB disease and latent TB infection

i. If LPHA self-certifies as a 340B TB clinic site and receives reimbursement for 340B medications
from OHA, it is the sole responsibility of LPHA to comply with all HRSA regulations and
requirements for 340B Drug Pricing Program Covered Entities.

i Any 340B cost savings or program income realized because of funding from this Agreement
must be used in a manner consistent with the goals of the grant or program under which it was
authorized; i.e., any cost saving resulting from CDC TB funding must be used to increase,
enhance, and support TB screening and treatment services.

S. General Revenue and Expense Reporting.

In lieu of the LPHA completing an “Oregon Health Authority Public Health Division Expenditure and
Revenue Report” located in Exhibit C of this Agreement, OHA-PHD will send a pre-populated invoice
to the LPHA for review and signature on or before the 5" business day of the month following the end
of the first, second, third and fourth fiscal year quarters. The LPHA must submit the signed invoice no
later than 30 calendar days after receipt of the invoice from OHA-PHD. The invoice will document the
number of new Active TB cases and/or B-waiver Follow-Ups for which the LPHA provided services in
the previous quarter. Pending approval of the invoice, OHA- PHD will remit FFS funds to LPHA. Funds
under this program element will not be paid in advance or on a 1/12" schedule.

6. Program Reporting Requirements.
LPHA must prepare and submit the following reports to OHA:

a. LPHA must notify OHA’s TB Program of each Case or Suspected Case of Active TB Disease
identified by or reported to LPHA no later than 5 business days within receipt of the report (OR
— within 5 business days of the initial case report), in accordance with the standards established
pursuant to OAR 333-018-0020. In addition, LPHA must, within 5 business days of a status
change of a Suspected Case of TB disease previously reported to OHA, notify OHA of the
change. A change in status occurs when a Suspected Case is either confirmed to have TB disease
or determined not to have TB disease. LPHA must utilize OHA’s ORPHEUS TB case module
for this purpose using the case reporting instructions located at
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/DISEASESCONDITIONS/COMMUNICABLEDISEASE/TUB
ER CULOSIS/Pages/tools.aspx . After a Case of TB disease has concluded treatment, case
completion information must be entered into the ORPHEUS TB case module within 5 business
days of conclusion of treatment.

b. LPHA must submit data regarding Contact investigations via ORPHEUS or other mechanism
deemed acceptable by OHA. Contact investigations are not required for strictly extrapulmonary
cases.

185827 TLH AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 7 OF 11 PAGES


https://www.hrsa.gov/opa/program-requirements
https://www.hrsa.gov/opa/program-requirements
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/DISEASESCONDITIONS/COMMUNICABLEDISEASE/TUBERCULOSIS/Pages/tools.aspx
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/DISEASESCONDITIONS/COMMUNICABLEDISEASE/TUBERCULOSIS/Pages/tools.aspx
https://www.oregon.gov/oha/PH/DISEASESCONDITIONS/COMMUNICABLEDISEASE/TUBERCULOSIS/Pages/tools.aspx

OHA -2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

7. Performance Measures.

If LPHA uses funds provided under this Agreement to support its TB investigation and control program,
LPHA must operate its program in a manner designed to achieve the following national TB performance

goals:

a.

185827 TLH

For patients with newly diagnosed TB disease for whom 12 months or less of treatment is
indicated, 92.0% will complete treatment within 12 months.

For TB patients with positive acid-fast bacillus (AFB) sputum-smear results, 100.0% (of
patients) will be interviewed to elicit Contacts.

For Contacts of sputum AFB smear-positive TB Cases, 90.0% will be evaluated for infection
and disease.

For Contacts of sputum AFB smear-positive TB Cases with newly diagnosed LTBI, 92.0% will
start treatment.

For Contacts of sputum AFB smear-positive TB Cases that have started treatment for newly
diagnosed LTBI, 93.0% will complete treatment.

For TB Cases in patients ages 12 years or older with a pleural or respiratory site of disease, 98%
will have a sputum culture result reported.

AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 8 OF 11 PAGES



OHA -2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

185827 TLH

Attachment B
Exhibit C - Financial Assistance Award

State of Oregon
Oregon Health Authority
Public Health Division

1) Grantee

Name: Polk County

Street: 182 SW Academy, Suite 302
City: Dallas
State: OR  Zip: 97338-1900

2) Issue Date

Friday, August 1, 2025

This Action

Amendment

FY 2026

3) Award Period
From July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2026

4) OHA Public Health Funds Approved
Previous
Award Increase / Current Award
Number Program Balance Decrease Balance
PEO1-01 State Support for Public Health $24,872.25 $0.00 $24,872.25
PEO1-12 ACDP Infection Prevention Training $1,517.82 $0.00 $1,517.82
PEO3 Tuberculosis Case Management $3,800.00 $0.00 $3,800.00
PE12-01 Public Health Emergency Preparedness $81,096.00 ($22,707.00) $58,389.00
and Response (PHEP)
PE13 Tobacce Prevention and Education $8,250.00 $0.00 $8,250.00
Program (TPEP)
PE36 Alcohol & Drug Prevention Education $82,250.00 $0.00 $82,250.00
Program (ADPEP)
PE36-01 QSPTR Board Primary Prevention Funding $99,436.00 $0.00 $99,436.00
PE40-01 WIC NSA: July - September $63,865.00 $0.00 $63,865.00
PE40-02 WIC NSA: October - June $191,595.00 $0.00 $191,595.00
PE40-05 Farmer's Market %1,661.00 $0.00 $1,661.00
PE42-03 MCAH Perinatal General Funds & Title XIX $9,546.00 $0.00 $9,546.00
PE42-04 MCAH Babies First! General Funds $10,612.00 $0.00 $10,612.00
PE42-11 MCAH Title V $35,287.00 $0.00 $35,287.00
PE42-12 MCAH Oregon Mothers Care Title V $2,586.00 $0.00 $2,586.00
PE43-01 Public Health Practice (PHP) - $21,893.00 $0.00 $21,893.00
Immunization Services

AMENDMENT #2

PAGE 9 OF 11 PAGES



OHA -2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

185827 TLH

4) OHA Public Health Funds Approved
Previous
Award Increase / Current Award
Number Program Balance Decrease Balance
PE44-01 SBHC Base $60,000.00 $0.00 %60,000.00
PE44-02 SBHC - Mental Health Expansion $77,000.00 $0.00 $77,000.00
PE46-05 RH Community Participation & Assurance $23,729.00 $0.00 $23,729.00
of Access
PESO Safe Drinking Water (SDW) Program $13,312.42 $0.00 $13,312.42
(Vendors)
PES1-01 LPHA Leadership, Governance and $508,400.50 $0.00 $508,400.50
Program Implementation
PES1-05 CDC PH Infrastructure Funding $72,359.00 $0.00 $72,359.00
PE63 MCAH LPHA Community Lead $60,000.00 $0.00 $60,000.00
Organizations
PE&1-01 HIV/STI Statewide Services (HS5S) Federal $25,864.00 $0.00 $25,864.00
Funds
PEB1-02 HIV/STI Statewide Services (HSSS) $125,390.00 $0.00 $125,390.00
Program Income
$1,604,321.99 ($22,707.00)| %$1,581,614.99

5) Foot Notes:

PEO1-01 07/2025: funding available 7/1/25-9/30/25 only.
PE40-01 07/2025: funds available 7/1/25-9/30/2025 only
PE40-02 07/2025: funds available 10/1/25-6/30/26 only
PE42-11 07/2025: Indirect rate caps at 10%.

PE42-12 07/2025: Indirect rate caps at 10%.

6) Comments:
PE36

08/2023: Prior comment null and void
07/2023: 520,562.50 available 7/1/25 - 9/30/25 only.

PE36-01

07/2025: This funding supersedes funding from KT#154982-5.

PES1-01

07/2025: 523,709 available 7/1/25-5/31/26 only; 52,155 available 6/1/26-6/30/26 only

7) Capital outlay Requested in this action:

Prior approval is required for Capital Outlay. Capital Outlay is defined as an expenditure for equipment with a

purchase price

in excess of $5,000 and a life expectancy greater than one year.

Program

Item Description Cost PROG APPROV

AMENDMENT #2 PAGE 10 OF 11 PAGES



OHA -2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT - FOR THE FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

185827 TLH

Attachment C

Exhibit J - Information required by CFR Subtitle B with guidance at 2 CFR Part 200

PE12-01 Public Health Emergency Preparedness and Response (PHEP)

Federal Award Identification Number:
Federal Award Date:

Budget Performance Period:
Awarding Agency:

CFDA Number:

CFDA Name:

Total Federal Award:

Project Description:

Awarding Official:

NU90TU000054

(06/26/25

07/01/25-06/30/26

CDC

[93.069

PHEP

(631,089

PHEP Cooperative Agreement
Rachel Forche

Indirect Cost Rate: '1 6.96
Research and Development (T/F):( FALSE
HIPPAINo
Agency UEI Amount Grand Total:
Polk MSNMZ3DRBRN5 $58,389.00 $58,389.00
AMENDMENT #2

PAGE 11 OF 11 PAGES



	25-175 (Amend 2 to 25-109).pdf
	2025-2027 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR THE
	FINANCING OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES
	RECITALS
	AGREEMENT

	Program Element #03: Tuberculosis Services
	OHA Program Responsible for Program Element:
	Not applicable
	Not applicable


